
 

Eastleigh House 
Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 

 
 

Tuesday, 7 June 2022 
 
 

CHANDLER'S FORD AND HILTINGBURY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 
will meet on 

Wednesday, 15 June 2022 
beginning at 

7:00 pm 
in the 

Velmore Community Centre, Falkland Road, Chandler's Ford, Hampshire, SO53 
3GY 

 
 
TO: Councillor James Duguid (Chair) 
 Councillor Alan Broadhurst (Vice-Chair) 
  

Councillor Maud Attrill 
Councillor Anne Buckley 
 
 

Councillor Tim Groves 
Councillor David Pragnell 
 

 
Staff Contacts: Catherine Collins, Democratic Services Officer, 

catherine.collins@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 

 Ross McClean, Local Area Manager, Tel: 023 8068 3367; Email: 
ross.mcclean@eastleigh.gov.uk 

 
 

JOANNE CASSAR 
Executive Head of Governance 

 

 
Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the Council's website  
as well as in other formats. 

 
Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the start of the meeting, 
and on individual agenda items at the time the item is discussed.  To register please 
contact the Democratic Services Officer above. 
 
Please be aware that the filming, audio recording, photography and use of social media is 
permitted at meetings open to the public. We ask that you notify the Chair or Support 
Officers in advance so that all attendees can be notified, and reasonable facilities can be 
provided. More information can be found here. 
 
Please note that Councillors will be using tablet devices to access meeting papers.

1

https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk/
https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/media/11419/recording-photography-and-filming-of-ebc-meetings-final.pdf


AGENDA 
 

1.   Apologies  
 

2.   Declarations of Interest  
 
Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes. 
 

3.   Minutes (Pages 5 - 8) 
 
To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 15 March 2022. 
 

4.   Public Participation  
 

5.   Chair's report  
 

6.   Report of the Local Area Manager (Pages 9 - 16) 
 

7.   Appointments to Outside Bodies, Regulatory Panels and Other Groups (Pages 
17 - 24) 
 

8.   TRO, Various Roads Chandler's Ford and Hiltingbury (Pages 25 - 36) 
 

9.   Planning Appeals  
 
The Legal Services Manager to report:- 
 
(a) that the following appeals have been lodged:- 
 

12 Heathlands Close, Chandler’s Ford. SO53 1GY 
 
Appeal against the refusal of planning permission for new front facing 
dormer and garage conversion to habitable accommodation and new 
pitched roof to replace flat roof. (Ref: H/21/90667) 
 
This was a delegated decision. 

 
(b) that the following appeals have been dismissed:- 
 

17 Lake Road, Chandler’s Ford, SO53 1EZ 
 
Appeal against the refusal of planning permission for a grass roofed car 
port. (Ref: H/21/91377) 
 
This was a delegated decision. 

 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Tuesday, 20 September 2022 at 7:00 pm 
In the Conference Room, Thornden Hall, 

Winchester Road, Chandlers Ford, Eastleigh, 
SO53 2D 

 

2



 

 
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news  - 
 
Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email updates 
with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, Transport plus 
lots more.  
 

3

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 

CHANDLER'S FORD AND HILTINGBURY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday, 15 March 2022  (7:00 pm – 8:55 pm) 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Duguid (Chair); Councillors Broadhurst, Groves, Grajewski and 
Pragnell 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors  
 

________________________________________ 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 

133. MINUTES 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 12 January 2022 be 
confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 
 

134. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest in relation to items of business on 
the agenda. 
 

135. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
Two members of the public spoke regarding parking on the pavement in 
Ashdown Road, Charnwood Crescent and the lower end of Sycamore 
Avenue. Their concerns included, but were not limited to, vehicles parking 
on the pavements and verges, sight lines being blocked, access struggles 
for buses and emergency vehicles, danger to pedestrians who have to 
walk in the road to get by, danger to school children, damage to the 
carriageway, contraventions to the Highways Act 1980, access to 
neighbouring residential streets, untaxed and sorn cars on the pavements 
and verges, and pedestrian safety. 
 
The Local Area Manager provided a short verbal response that the 
Committee had been made aware of the issues, and he would look at what 
actions could be taken, both in the short and long-term, and respond to the 
speakers in writing. 
 

136. CHAIR'S REPORT 
 
The Chair was delighted to report that the footpath at the south-west 
corner of Hiltingbury recreation ground, that had a nasty corner ridge, had 
been repaired. 
 

5

Agenda Item 3



2 
 

 

The Chair was also pleased to report that works at Flexford Nature 
Reserve was largely complete, including improved access, improved water 
quality and better visibility. 
 
The Chair thanked everyone involved in the clear up after the damage 
caused by recent storms. 
 
The Chair mentioned that lots of people were organising street parties for 
the Queen’s upcoming jubilee, and that there was guidance available on 
Eastleigh Borough Council’s website if any extra help was needed. 
 
The Chair thanked the Local Area Manager and the Assistant Local Area 
Manager for their work in identify a grant available to help encourage 
people to shop locally, which was something to celebrate. 
 
The Chair was saddened by the current catastrophe and desperate 
situation in the Ukraine, but was pleased to see the people of Chandler’s 
Ford and Hiltingbury rallying together to try to provide help and support to 
the people of the Ukraine. 
 
The Chair mentioned that Hiltingbury Car Park and the footpath to the 
west side of Hiltingbury recreation ground were awaiting work by 
Chandler’s Ford Parish Council, and he hoped it would not be too much 
longer. 
 
Finally, the Chair thanked all officers for their continued hard work during 
the last two years of the Covid-19 pandemic. 
 

137. PRESENTATION ON PLANNING GUIDELINES 
 
The Senior Planning Officer gave a short presentation on guidelines that 
had to be taken into account when determining planning applications; in 
particular the issues that could, and could not, be taken into account.  This 
was set against the broader policy framework. 
 

138. PLANNING APPLICATION - 185 HURSLEY ROAD, CHANDLER'S FORD, 
EASTLEIGH, SO53 1JH (F/21/92125) 
 
The Committee considered the report of Executive Head of Planning & 
Economy (Agenda item 7) concerning an application for demolition of 
existing bungalow (retrospective) and construction of replacement four-
bedroom dwelling (part retrospective) at 185 Hursley Road, Chandler's 
Ford, Eastleigh, SO53 1JH. (Ref: F/21/92125). 
 
There was lengthy debate where the Committee raised concerns and 
requested clarity on the measurements of the development, including the 
roof height, driveway gradient, garage access and proximity to the 
boundary with number 187. 
 

6



3 
 

 

Councillor Broadhurst proposed an amendment to the substantiative 
recommendation, which was seconded by Councillor Groves. This was 
carried as follows. 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That subject to: 

i) Receipt and consideration of a construction environmental 
management plan to include protection of the water course, 
contractor parking, delivery vehicles and material storage.  

ii) The imposition of an additional condition to ensure work is 
carried out in accordance with the construction environmental 
management plan. 
 
To delegate back to the Executive Head for Planning and Economy in 
conjunction with the Chair and Vice Chair and Cllr Grajewski (as 
opposition member) of Chandler’s Ford Local Area Committee to 
PERMIT: 
 
With the following amended condition: 
 
Condition 6: The rear balcony shall not be constructed until details of 
a privacy screen, of at least 1.8m high, positioned along both sides of 
the balcony has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The balcony shall be installed and 
thereafter retained in perpetuity in accordance with the approved 
details. 
Reason: To protect the privacy of the neighbouring dwellings. 
 
With the following additional condition: 
 
For the lifetime of the development, any trees or plants which are 
removed, die or become seriously damaged or defective, shall be 
replaced as soon as is reasonably practicable with others of the 
same species, size and number as originally approved in the scheme 
of landscaping works secured under condition 7.  
Reason - In the interests of the visual amenities of the locality and to 
protect the water quality of the stream. 
 
(NOTE: Two written statements were received in objection to the 
application citing concerns, including but not limited to, increases in size of 
the development, stepped access to the dwelling, gradient of the drive 
access to the garage, proximity to number 187, lack of information 
provided in the application, inadequate parking solutions on the site, and 
flooding. 
Three people spoke in objection to the application citing concerns, 
including but not limited to, flood risks, watercourse concerns, failure to 
build in accordance with plans, access to maintain property of the 
neighbouring houses, height of the proposed dwelling being unclear, lack 

7



4 
 

 

of flood resilience, drainage issues, lack of remedial work undertaken, the 
proposed garage being unusable, lack of enforcement action, lack of 
privacy to neighbouring properties, lack of building regulation compliance, 
lack of detail in the plans, impact on residential amenity, encroachment on 
neighbouring property, ecology and environment impacts, impact and 
damage to neighbouring trees, lack of detail in the conditions of the 
application, and previous breaches to the permitted development on the 
site. 
 
The applicant’s planning agent spoke in support of the application.) 
 

139. PLANNING APPEALS 
 
The Head of Legal reported:- 
 

(a) that the following appeals had been lodged:- 
17 Lake Road, Chandler’s Ford, Eastleigh, SO53 1EZ (H/21/91377)  
  
Appeal against the Council’s refusal to grant planning permission 
for a grass roofed carport. 
 
This was a delegated decision. 
 

(b) that the following appeals had been allowed:- 
307 Hursley Road, Chandler’s Ford SO53 5PJ (H/21/90793) 
 
Appeal against the Council’s refusal to grant planning permission 
for a carport. 
 
This was a delegated decision. 
 

(c) that the following appeals had been dismissed:- 
1 Welles Road, Chandler's Ford, SO53 2GQ (H/20/89088) 
 
Appeal against the Council’s refusal to grant planning permission 
for the addition of a rear extension. 
 
This was a delegated decision. 
 
50 Shaftesbury Avenue, Chandler’s Ford SO53 3BP (H/21/90791) 
 
Appeal against the Council’s refusal to grant planning permission 
for a two storey side extension with attached rear first floor 
extension. 
 
This was a delegated decision. 

 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the report be noted. 

8



 

CHANDLER'S FORD AND HILTINGBURY LOCAL AREA 
COMMITTEE  

Wednesday, 15 June 2022  

FINANCIAL REPORT 

Report of the Local Area Manager 

 

Recommendation(s) 

It is recommended that the committee: 
 
(1) Approves the introduction of a charge for a Genealogy search of £30 at 

Ramalley Cemetery  

(2) Note the annual budget allocation of £2,000 towards the delivery of the 
ParkSport programme for 2022 from revenue budget.  

(3) Approves the allocation of £530 towards the Speed Indicator Device 
programme 22/23 from the reserves of the EBC Engineer Services. 

(4) Approves the allocation of £1600 to install four dual waste bins, two at Fircroft 
Drive, one at Ashdown Road and one at the path between the Central Precinct 
and Meon Crescent from the CFH roundabout sponsorship income. 

(5) Approves the allocation of £122 towards the installation of a new bollard sign 
at Benmore Gardens and Avonbourne Way from the reserves of the EBC 
Engineer services. 

(6) Approves the allocation of £250 towards the installation of wooden posts at 
land adjacent to Oakmount Road from the reserves of the EBC Engineer 
services. 

(7) Approves the allocation of £ £810.81 from Developer contributions towards 
the Wildflower project 2022, for sites that have been sown in Meon Crescent, 
Carthage Road, Shannon Way and Hiltingbury Road. 

(8) To note the good news stories as detailed in Appendix A 

 

Summary 
 
This report contains recommendations for expenditure from the Committee’s developer 
contributions and identifies funding for provision to meet local need and to enhance the 

local area.  The Local Area Committee’s support is sought to enable their implementation. 

9

Agenda Item 6



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Statutory Powers 
 
Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 i.e. the Local Authority’s general power of competence, 
including power to act for the benefit of its area or persons resident or present in its area. 
S.106 Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

 

Strategic Implications  

1. The works outlined below contribute to the following strategic priorities: 

 Local First: where possible taking decisions at a local level about things 
which affect people’s lives, and using contributions from local 
developments for local projects 

 Excellent Environment for all: creating a sense of place through 
improved pathways, additional bins and air quality 

 Enabling health and wellbeing and tackling deprivation; improving 
community infrastructure and places where different people can meet 
and receive support and services. 

Genealogy Search charge 

2. In recent months both cemeteries in Eastleigh have received several requests 
to carry out a genealogy search.  Each search takes over 60 minutes of officer 
time. Local research has been carried out and Southampton City Council have 
implemented a genealogy search charge of £30 for this service.  The Direct 
Services team at Eastleigh Borough Council are proposing the implementation 
of a £30 charge for any Genealogy requests to cover the costs of 
administration time, the providing of maps and names.   It is proposed this will 
take effect from 1st July 2022. 

Park Sport 

3. It is proposed that Park Sport 2022 will go ahead this Summer. It will be based 
on the same principles in previous years with activities accessible at a 
subsidised rate.   A range of sports activities will be delivered in the 
Chandler’s Ford and Hiltingbury areas, which will be delivered by local sports 
clubs with clear exit routes to sustained participation. 

4. It is for members of the committee to note the budget allocation of £2,000 for 
Park Sport 2022 programme has been identified. 

Speed Indicator Device 

5. SIDs are a variation of standard vehicle activated signs which can be moved 
around easily. They flash the current speed limit (e.g.,30 mph, 40 mph etc) 
and these models flash a green smiley face if the motorist is approaching 

10



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

within the speed limit or a red sad face if the speed limit is exceeded. SIDs 
remind drivers of the speed limit by standing out from normal signs. Their use 
can help to break the habit of drivers who consistently use excessive speed. 

6. The cost of each deployment of the SID is £50 and the programme runs for 12 
months. The programme for this year includes 23 sites, leaving 3 gaps for 
members to add any during the year.   
The existing budget that is allocated for SID deployment in Chandler’s Ford 
and Hiltingbury is £770, however a further £530 is required to deliver the full 
complement of deployments. 

7. It is therefore recommended that the cost is taken from the reserves of the 
EBC Engineer Services budget. 

Installation of four dual waste bins 

8. The committee has an ongoing programme for extending the coverage of dual 
waste bins and replacing worn out bins to help reduce litter across the local 
area.  

9. A Local Engagement Officer from Eastleigh Borough Council has visited the 
four sites identified, to investigate the need for a standard Broxap Derby 120 
litre dual waste bin to be implemented. The recommendation is to install four 
dual waste bins at Ashdown Road, two bins at Fircroft Drive and one bin 
between Central Pre3cicnt and Meon Crescent. 

10. A standard Broxap Derby 120 litre dual waste bin is used and supplied across 
the Borough. The total supply and cost of fitting for each litter bin is £400. 
There is no additional cost to bins being emptied, which is apportioned locally.  

11. It is recommended that £1600 is allocated from the income generated from 
the annual sponsorship of CFH Roundabouts. 

Replacement bollard at Benmore Gardens/Avonbourne Way  

12. A resident at Benmore Gardens has notified Eastleigh Borough Council of a 
removed bollard by a suspected lorry at the junction of Benmore Gardens and 
Avonbourne Way.  The site has been reviewed and the recommendation is to 
install a new bollard at a cost of £122.    

It is recommended that cost is taken from the reserves of the EBC Engineer 
Services budget. 

Installation of dragons’ teeth at Oakmount Road 

13. EBC have recently received reports of missing dragons’ teeth and subsequent 
parking on the grass verge outside 66 Oakmount Road.  The location has 
been inspected by EBC’s Local Response Officer, who confirmed several 
wooden posts have been removed or rotted away.  The cost to replace these 
posts is £250 

11



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

14. It is recommended that cost is taken from the reserves of the EBC Engineer 
Services budget. 

Planting of wildflowers  

15. The wildflowers sown for 2022 are located at Meon Crescent, Carthage Road, 
Shannon Way and Hiltingbury Road within EBC owned land. This project has 
been carried out by the Council’s Streetscene team.  

16. To fund the £810.81, it is recommended that the following Developer’s 
Contribution is allocated for this purpose: 

DC Reference Details Amount required 

F/18/84154 Doswell Projects Ltd 
Receipt date – 09/07/2019 

£810.81 

 

Financial Implications 

17. All expenditure within this report can be funded from existing approved 
revenue budgets and developer contributions. 

Risk Assessment 

18. There is some risk to consider with the above recommendations.  If the bins 
are not replaced, we would need to consider the reputational risk and the 
public health risk of bins not being installed.  The Park Sport is supported by 
all five local areas.  If this programme were not supported by the CFH 
Committee, the young people of Chandler’s Ford and Hiltingbury would miss 
out on subsidised activities in the school holidays. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

19. The Equality Act is relevant to the decisions in this report because as the 
decisions relate to eliminating discrimination, advancing equality of 
opportunity, or fostering good relations between different people.  

20. A full Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out, because 
while there are some equalities impacted, it is not proportionate to carry out a 
full EIA. 

 
Climate Change and Environmental Implications 

21. None of the proposals within this report will lead to increases in Greenhouse 
Gas/CO2, or damage ecology or the environment.  

 

12



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Conclusion 

22. The recommendations contained in this report are now submitted for 
Councillors’ final approval and are to be funded from the Local Area 
Committee’s revenue budget, revenue reserves and available developer 

contributions for the above projects.  

ROSS MCCLEAN 
LOCAL AREA MANAGER 

 
Date: 18 May 2022 
Contact Officer: Ross McClean 
Tel No: 02380 683367 
e-mail: ross.mcclean@eastleigh.gov.uk  
Appendices Attached: 1 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

None. 
 

13



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Appendix A 

 
 

Chandler’s Ford & Hiltingbury  
 
 
The Welcome Back Fund 
 
EBC were successful in attracting external funding to encourage residents back to the high street 
after the restrictions of Covid. Below are some of the examples of projects in Chandler’s Ford, 
supported and identified by the LAC, that were funded by the welcome back fund. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Fryern Arcade vinyl’s - The installations were created with a local 
company, Studio BAD. The company have collaborated with 
Amanda Moore on a set of new artworks to be applied to 
currently unused retail frontages in the Fryern Arcade in 
Chandler's Ford to enable them to provide more of a contribution 
to passers-by. Amanda is a qualified architect and artist who has 
worked on a number of public art commissions. 
 
 
 

 
Here is a breakdown of how the WBF grant money was used in Chandler’s Ford. 
 

 
 
In addition, we have supported the different high street businesses through our wide range of 
activities including #BoroughGems, Christmas Campaign featuring Chandler’s Ford businesses, shop 
safe and Shop Local campaign. 

Wildflowers 

(Picture to follow) 

In Springtime this year, four locations in Chandler’s Ford (on Eastleigh Borough Council Land) 
Wildflowers sown. The locations were Meon Crescent, Carthage Road, Shannon Way, Hiltingbury 
Road. This was approved by the LAC and funded through identified develop contribution funds. The 
areas sown might not look pretty at the moment, but they will bloom in the summertime. 

15



 
 
 
Hiltingbury Car Park resurfacing works 

 
 
In March 2021, the CFH LAC agreed to allocate £10,000 of 
Developer Contribution funding to the Chandler’s Ford & 
Hiltingbury Parish Council to improve the car parks and 
drainage issues at Hiltingbury Recreation ground. The work 
was carried out in the School Easter Holidays of 2022 to 
ensure minimal disruption to users during school time and the 
results have been a success. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Flexford Nature Reserve 

 
 
 
In February 2022, the leader of the council announced he 
would allocate £75,000 to help make improvements to 
Upper Flexford Nature Reserve. A project manager has 
been appointed and EBC are working with Aqua Science, 
the Hampshire Wildlife Trust and Hampshire County 
Council with a target of completing the works in Autumn 
this year.  

  

16



CHANDLERS FORD LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE  

Wednesday 15th June 2022  

APPOINTMENTS TO REGULATORY PANELS, OTHER GROUPS 
AND OUTSIDE BODIES 

Report of the Local Area Manager 

 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that: 

  

(1) the nominations for 2022-23 municipal year appointments to regulatory 

panels and other groups as set out in paragraph 5 are approved; and 

(2) the proposed nominations for 2022-23 municipal year appointments to 

Outside Bodies, as set out in appendix A are approved. 

 

Summary 

 

Regulatory Panels are formal decision-making panels required to deliver the Council’s 

statutory obligations. The other groups comprise those established to share information or 

manage local initiatives. Outside bodies are external organisations, including formal or 

informal partnerships, to which the Borough Council is a party, which have requested that 

the Borough Council appoint an Elected Councillor or a representative to them or to which 

the Council expects to make appointments.  

Statutory Powers 

 

Local Government Act 2000, Localism Act 2011. 

 

Strategic Implications 

1. This report relates to governance arrangements which underpin all the 
Council’s Corporate Plan objectives. 

Introduction 

2. Regulatory Panels are formal decision-making panels required to deliver the 
council statutory obligations, such as Licensing. The other groups comprise 
those established to share information or manage local initiatives. 

17

Agenda Item 7

https://eastleighgovuk-my.sharepoint.com/personal/narinder_phagura-sims_eastleigh_gov_uk/Documents/CFH%20Working%20Group/CFH%20LAC%20items/Appointment%20to%20outside%20bodies%20report%202122.FINAL.docx#Reportofthe
https://eastleighgovuk-my.sharepoint.com/personal/narinder_phagura-sims_eastleigh_gov_uk/Documents/CFH%20Working%20Group/CFH%20LAC%20items/Appointment%20to%20outside%20bodies%20report%202122.FINAL.docx#Recommendation
https://eastleighgovuk-my.sharepoint.com/personal/narinder_phagura-sims_eastleigh_gov_uk/Documents/CFH%20Working%20Group/CFH%20LAC%20items/Appointment%20to%20outside%20bodies%20report%202122.FINAL.docx#Summary
https://eastleighgovuk-my.sharepoint.com/personal/narinder_phagura-sims_eastleigh_gov_uk/Documents/CFH%20Working%20Group/CFH%20LAC%20items/Appointment%20to%20outside%20bodies%20report%202122.FINAL.docx#StatutoryPowers
https://eastleighgovuk-my.sharepoint.com/personal/narinder_phagura-sims_eastleigh_gov_uk/Documents/CFH%20Working%20Group/CFH%20LAC%20items/Appointment%20to%20outside%20bodies%20report%202122.FINAL.docx#Introduction


3. Outside bodies are external organisations and partnerships which have 
requested that the Borough Council appoint an Elected Councillor or a 
representative to them.  Participation in outside bodies: 

 Contributes to the Borough Council’s strategic functions, priorities or 
community leadership roles; 

 Supports partnership and joint working; and 

 Enables Councillors to gain and share knowledge and expertise. 
 
4. All Councillors are eligible to be appointed as representatives of the Borough 

Council on these groups.  Councillors and staff appointed must respond to all 
reasonable requests for information about the work of the outside body and 
their participation in it. 

Proposal 

5. This Committee is responsible for making Councillor appointments to a 
number of Regulatory Panels and other groups. The following nominations 
have been made for Councillor representatives for the municipal year 22-23 
and it is recommended that these are approved as follows. 

Regulatory Panels Councillor nominations for 22-23 

Licensing – to deal with issues not 
covered by the Licensing Act 2003 or 
the Gambling Act 2005 

All members of the Committee to be 
appointed to a pool from which any 
three can be selected. 

Other Groups  

Licensing Panels as appointed by full 
Council for the purposes of the 
Licensing Act 2003 or the Gambling 
Act 2005 

Councillor Broadhurst 
Councillor Groves 
Councillor Buckley 

 

6. This Committee is also responsible for making Councillor appointments to 
Outside Bodies within the Chandlers Ford Local Area. A list of outside bodies 
to which the Local Councillors makes appointments to, and the recommended 
nominees can be found at Appendix A. 

Financial Implications 

7. There are no financial implications associated with this decision. 

Risk Assessment 

8. Councillors must consider the implications and responsibilities of being 
involved with outside bodies as they must:  

18

https://eastleighgovuk-my.sharepoint.com/personal/narinder_phagura-sims_eastleigh_gov_uk/Documents/CFH%20Working%20Group/CFH%20LAC%20items/Appointment%20to%20outside%20bodies%20report%202122.FINAL.docx#Heading
https://eastleighgovuk-my.sharepoint.com/personal/narinder_phagura-sims_eastleigh_gov_uk/Documents/CFH%20Working%20Group/CFH%20LAC%20items/Appointment%20to%20outside%20bodies%20report%202122.FINAL.docx#Finance
https://eastleighgovuk-my.sharepoint.com/personal/narinder_phagura-sims_eastleigh_gov_uk/Documents/CFH%20Working%20Group/CFH%20LAC%20items/Appointment%20to%20outside%20bodies%20report%202122.FINAL.docx#Risk


 Continue to comply with the Borough Council’s Code of Conduct when 
they are acting as a representative of the Council.  

 Comply with the code of conduct of the outside body they are appointed to 
if one exists.  

 Declare a personal interest in any business of the Borough Council where 
it relates to a body, they are appointed to by the Borough Council.   

 
9. All Councillors are recommended to make sure that when they take up their 

appointment with the outside body, they have access to the key documents 
regulating the organisation such as its constitution or terms of reference to 
ensure they are aware of what the body can and cannot do, and receive a 
briefing on the body or their role within it if necessary.  

10. There is a risk that appointments will not be made to all the outside bodies 
which could hinder the Borough Council in furthering its interests and 
priorities, and not develop the external facing role of Councillors. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

11. The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report because it is 
making an appointment outside bodies. Equality and diversity will be 
considered as part of the work of these bodies. 

Climate Change and Environmental Implications 

12. Councillors travelling to meetings via unsustainable means could represent an 
increase in greenhouse gases but some of this will be offset during social 
distancing measures as many meetings are postponed or held virtually.  
Councillors are encouraged to travel sustainably where possible and do not 
receive paper copies of agendas. 

Conclusion 

13. That the appointments to the Regulatory Panels, other groups and Outside 
Bodies should approved for the 2022/23 municipal year. 

ROSS MCCLEAN 
LOCAL AREA MANAGER 

 
Date: 26 May 2022 
Contact Officer: Ross McClean  
Tel No: 02380 683367 
e-mail: ross.mcclean@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: 1 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

19

https://eastleighgovuk-my.sharepoint.com/personal/narinder_phagura-sims_eastleigh_gov_uk/Documents/CFH%20Working%20Group/CFH%20LAC%20items/Appointment%20to%20outside%20bodies%20report%202122.FINAL.docx#Equality
https://eastleighgovuk-my.sharepoint.com/personal/narinder_phagura-sims_eastleigh_gov_uk/Documents/CFH%20Working%20Group/CFH%20LAC%20items/Appointment%20to%20outside%20bodies%20report%202122.FINAL.docx#Conclusion
https://eastleighgovuk-my.sharepoint.com/personal/narinder_phagura-sims_eastleigh_gov_uk/Documents/CFH%20Working%20Group/CFH%20LAC%20items/Appointment%20to%20outside%20bodies%20report%202122.FINAL.docx#Author
https://eastleighgovuk-my.sharepoint.com/personal/narinder_phagura-sims_eastleigh_gov_uk/Documents/CFH%20Working%20Group/CFH%20LAC%20items/Appointment%20to%20outside%20bodies%20report%202122.FINAL.docx#Author
https://eastleighgovuk-my.sharepoint.com/personal/narinder_phagura-sims_eastleigh_gov_uk/Documents/CFH%20Working%20Group/CFH%20LAC%20items/Appointment%20to%20outside%20bodies%20report%202122.FINAL.docx#Appendices


None. 
 

 

20

https://eastleighgovuk-my.sharepoint.com/personal/narinder_phagura-sims_eastleigh_gov_uk/Documents/CFH%20Working%20Group/CFH%20LAC%20items/Appointment%20to%20outside%20bodies%20report%202122.FINAL.docx#Background


APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2022/23 

 

Chandler's Ford and Hiltingbury Local Area Committee 
 

Name of Organisation: CHANDLER'S FORD COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION 

Proposed 2022/23 

Representative(s): 

Cllr D Pragnell 

Contact Officer: Ross McClean 

Committee: Chandler's Ford and Hiltingbury Local Area Committee 

Terms of reference  

and objectives of 

organisation: 

To promote the benefit on the inhabitants of Chandler's Ford 
and the neighbourhood, to advance education, to provide 
facilities in the interests of social welfare, recreation and 
leisure and to improve, maintain and manage the affairs of 
the Community Centre. 

Key areas of interest and 

topical Issues for the 

organisation: 

To provide facilities for and encourage members of the 
Association to participate in any or all of the following 
activities:-  whist, bridge, table tennis, music appreciation, 
Scrabble, social activities, dressmaking, play reading, 
sequence dancing and rambling.  To provide facilities for 
affiliated bodies to hold their meetings and activities.  To 
provide a source of income for the Association by the letting 
of the facilities of the Community Centre. 

No of meetings per year: 

 
Decided at the AGM. 

Usual time of meeting(s): 
 
Meetings are  held at the Community 
Centre and start at 7.00 pm unless 
otherwise advised.  Meetings are split 
between Council and an Executive 
Committee 

Normal amount of 

notice given of 

meeting(s): 
 

Desired skills, qualities, 

knowledge or experience 

Members should have: 

No particular skills required. 

Details of any training 

provided: 

None. 

Details of anticipated 

workload: 

e.g., will member attend 

meeting only or be 

involved in other work?  

No particular workload envisaged.  The member would 
attend Council and Executive Committee meetings and 
would hopefully provide the link between us and the E.C.C. 
should one be required. 

Name and address of 

contact for organisation: 

Mr G Partridge   
Chairman 
Chandler's Ford Community Association 
Community Centre 
Hursley Road   Chandler's Ford SO53 2FT 

21



APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2022/23 

 

Chandler's Ford and Hiltingbury Local Area Committee 
 

Name of Organisation: HILTINGBURY COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION 

Proposed 2022/23 

Representative(s): 

Cllr J Duguid 

Contact Officer: Ross McClean 

Committee: Chandler's Ford and Hiltingbury Local Area Committee 

Terms of reference  

and objectives of 

organisation: 

To build and manage a new community centre for the 
benefit of local residents.  The Association is a non political 
organisation and it is important that it remains independent 
and impartial to issues of race, religion, politics and all other 
forms of bias. 

Key areas of interest and 

topical Issues for the 

organisation: 

To provide a new youth facility and range of social, sport 
and recreational and educational activities for all ages. 

No of meetings per year: 

 
Decided at the AGM. 

Usual time of meeting(s): 
 
Last Tuesday of every other month 

Normal amount of 

notice given of 

meeting(s): 
 

Desired skills, qualities, 

knowledge or experience 

Members should have: 

No particular skills required, but there is a need for non-
political impartiality. 

Details of any training 

provided: 

None 

Details of anticipated 

workload: 

e.g., will member attend 

meeting only or be 

involved in other work?  

Member would act as a link between the Community 
Association and the Council. 

Name and address of 

contact for organisation: 

Secretary 
Hiltingbury Community Association 
The Hilt, Hiltingbury Recreation Ground 
Hiltingbury Road, Chandler's Ford 
Hampshire SO53 5NP 

22



APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2022/23 

 

Chandler's Ford and Hiltingbury Local Area Committee 
 

Name of Organisation: NORTH MILLERS DALE COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION 

Proposed 2022/23 

Representative(s): 

Mrs Pamela Holden-Brown 

Contact Officer: Ross McClean 

Committee: Chandler's Ford and Hiltingbury Local Area Committee 

Terms of reference  

and objectives of 

organisation: 

The Committee should have 6 Members - 3 from Eastleigh 
Baptist Church, 1 from the Council and 2 from a Residents 
Association.  The objective is to supervise letting 
arrangements when not used by the Church's sub-tenant for 
a kindergarten. 

Key areas of interest and 

topical Issues for the 

organisation: 

Adequate availability/opportunity for local community and 
private use. 

No of meetings per year: 

 
3 or 4 

Usual time of meeting(s): 
 
8.00  pm 

Normal amount of 

notice given of 

meeting(s): 
 
2/3 weeks 

Desired skills, qualities, 

knowledge or experience 

Members should have: 

Ability to mediate.  Some knowledge of running a public hall 
an advantage. 

Details of any training 

provided: 

 

Details of anticipated 

workload: 

e.g., will member attend 

meeting only or be 

involved in other work?  

Possibly. 

Name and address of 

contact for organisation: 

Mrs P Holden-Brown 
North Millers Dale Community Association 
8 Weavers Place 
Chandler's Ford 
SO53 1TU    

 

23



This page is intentionally left blank



CHANDLERS FORD AND HILTINGBURY 

LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 

15 June 2022 

TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS (TRO) VARIOUS ROADS 

Report of the SENIOR ENGINEERING SPECIALIST 

Recommendation(s) 

It is recommended that  the Committee approve the making of a Traffic Regulation 
order, the effects of which are to: 
 
(1) Introduce waiting restrictions in  

a) Ashdown Close, 

b) Kings Road,  

c) Meadbrook Gardens, and  

d) Oakwood Road. 

(2) Introduce limited waiting in Hut Farm Place. 

 

Summary 
 
A proposal to introduce waiting and parking restrictions on various roads in Chandlers 
Ford and Hiltingbury was advertised on 25 February 2022.  Representations were received 
both in support of the limited waiting in Hut Farm Place, and objecting to the restrictions in 
Ashdown Close.  This report summarises the comments received and recommends how to 
proceed. 

Statutory Powers 
 
Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984; Traffic Management Act 2004.  

Legal Agreements 

Agency Agreement between Hampshire County Council and Eastleigh Borough Council 
dated 10 September 2019 

 

25

Agenda Item 8



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Strategic Implications  

1. Creating an excellent environment for all by removing obstructive and 
inconsiderate parking 

Introduction 

2. Various roads in the Chandlers Ford and Hiltingbury Local Area have been 
investigated in response to reported problems such as obstructive parking.  
Site investigations were undertaken to assess the issues being experienced 
by road users, and to decide on appropriate measures to mitigate the issues.   

3.  This report details the comments received during the public consultation 
period.  The Committee is asked to consider the comments received, before 
deciding to introduce, amend or withdraw the Traffic Regulation Order. 

DETAIL 

4.  Consultation was undertaken by means of a Public Notice on the Eastleigh 
Borough Council website, published in the Hampshire Independent 
newspaper, and posted on street furniture in the vicinity of the proposed 
restrictions. Plans showing the proposed restrictions are in Appendix 1. 

5.  Five Representations were received to the proposed Traffic Regulation Order 
as detailed below: 

Four in relation to Ashdown Close 

One in relation to Oakwood Road 

Location Comment Response 

Ashdown Close 
/ Ashdown Road 

I write to object to part of The 

Borough of Eastleigh (Chandlers 

Ford and Hiltingbury) (Amendment 

No.9) Order 2022. Specifically, I 

wish to object to the proposed new 

no waiting zones on Ashdown Road 

and Ashdown Close. I would assert 

that there are insufficient reasons for 

making of such a no waiting zones 

on Ashdown Road and Ashdown 

Close. Both Ashdown Road and 

Ashdown Close are quiet residential 

streets. Ashdown Close in particular 

is a no through road. I live in close 

proximity to this junction and I am 

unaware of any accidents, incidents, 

or even minor disagreements 

1) The way in which a junction is 
measured for an order takes 
account of the side road 
‘bellmouth’. By projecting the 
straight section of the kerb to form 
a right angle, one then has a 
defined point from which to take 
the measurement. 

2) The proposed restriction reflects 
Rule243 of the highway code 
which directs drivers NOT to stop 
or park opposite or within 10m of 
a junction. The purpose of this 
regulation is to ensure drivers 
entering or leaving the side road 
have the visibility to make the 
manoeuvre safely, It also ensures 
that larger vehicles such as 
refuse trucks and fire tenders are 
able to access the road without 

26



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

between users at this location 

involving vehicles, cyclists or 

pedestrians. Neither have I 

witnessed any dangerous parking 

near this junction. The Council have 

not provided any reports or 

examples that this junction is, or has 

been historically, unsafe, or that any 

incidents have occurred.  

Further, the Council already have 

recourse if they consider cars to be 

inappropriately parked: Rule 243 of 

the Highway Code already includes 

an enforceable rule relating to 

parking within 10 metres of a 

junction.  

The proposed no waiting zones 

appear to restrict parking/waiting for 

15 metres from each side of the 

junction (as opposed to the 10 

metres in the Highway Code). There 

does not appear to be any rational 

justification for such additional 

restrictions on this junction.  

I would further assert that adding in 

a no waiting zone will actually cause 

and/or increase danger to all road 

users, and in particular to school 

aged pedestrians and other road 

users using Ashdown Road around 

this junction: The houses to the east 

side of Ashdown Close all have 

driveways which are utilized 

appropriately. The houses to the 

west side of Ashdown Close do not 

have driveways and, therefore, often 

park on the west side of the road. 

The number of houses located there 

means there is sufficient space for 

the cars on Ashdown Close. Given 

the parking occurs on one side of 

the road, and this is a no through 

road, this does not sufficiently inhibit 

the passage of traffic, or cause a 

danger to road users. Imposing new 

parking/waiting restrictions that are 

difficulty. 
 

27



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

in excess of those in the Highway 

Code will reduce the available 

parking spaces available, the 

residents of Ashdown Close will 

then necessarily have to park on the 

Ashdown Road. Relatively speaking 

Ashdown Road is a larger and 

busier road: it is a walking and 

driving route to the local Schools 

(particularly Hiltingbury Infant and 

Hiltingbury Junior Schools); and 

there is a small parade of shops at 

the southern end of Ashdown Road. 

Additional parked cars on Ashdown 

Road will result in increased danger 

to road users driving around them, 

and children/other pedestrians 

crossing the road with inhibited 

vision.  

Ashdown Close 
/ Ashdown Road 

Doubt the proposed tro will have 
any positive effect, other than to 
move the parking issue to the other 
side of the road. I have lived here 
over 11 years, existing lack of 
restriction is imperfect but at worst it 
causes people to slow down a little, 
not a bad thing. This proposal may 
encourage an increase speed at this 
junction and therefore increase the 
chance of injury. It appears to be 
change for changes sake so is not 
required 

Councillors are made aware of all 
responses by residents so that any 
concerns / observations can be given 
full consideration during the decision-
making process at the Local Area 
Committee. 

 

Ashdown Close 
/ Ashdown Road 

noticed your sign about this order 
which has prompted me to mention 
two other matters of safety I would 
urgently like to bring to your 
attention: 1.The traffic outside our 
house (no 76) approaches our blind 
bend at great speed often without 
consideration for what is around the 
corner and cars often parked down 
the hill. The houses opposite 
(119.....) park on the road because 
their garages entrance track is 
around the bend and too dangerous 
to back out of. Traffic coming up the 
hill often meets head-on because of 
this parking. I believe many years 

The comments are noted for future 
consideration but are outside the 
scope of this TRO. 

28



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

ago we did have SLOW signs 
painted on the road and also a 
concealed entrance warning sign on 
the verge before the bend. Could 
you please consider re-introducing 
these measures to make our bend 
safe again. 2.Also I would like to 
bring to your attention the position of 
the bus stop in Hocombe Road near 
to Ashdown Drive; it was always 
safely positioned in Ashdown Drive, 
but is now at the bottom of a hill in 
Hocombe Road next to Ashdown 
Drive. Traffic comes down this hill at 
great speed and drivers cannot see 
each other if a bus is stopped there. 
Someone could easily be killed at 
this junction because the bus stop is 
too close to the entrance to 
Ashdown Drive. An inexperienced 
driver is especially at risk here. I 
cannot understand why this Bus 
stop was placed where there is an 
obvious risk to drivers trying to turn 
right out of Ashdown Drive into 
Hocombe Road. I await your 
thoughts on these comments as I 
feel they are more necessary than 
your order proposals nearby. Thank 
you for your time and attention. 

Ashdown Close 
/ Ashdown Road 

1) The image and the wording do 
not align. The wording is 15 meters 
in each direction. The picture shows 
much less (probably 7.5 meters). (2) 
This will push parked cards from a 
no through road (Ashdown Close), 
onto a main road (Ashdown Road). 

The way in which a junction is 
measured for an order takes 
account of the side road 
‘bellmouth’. By projecting the 
straight section of the kerb to form 
a right angle, one then has a 
defined point from which to take 
the measurement. 

Oakwood Close I refer to the notices posted in the 
vicinity of Hiltingbury Road and 
Oakwood Road and wish to draw 
your attention to a problem not 
identified for solution by the 
captioned order. 

Over recent months local residents 
have experienced problems due to 
cars parked at the northern end of 

Comments have been noted for 
future consideration and will be 
reported back to the Local Area 
Committee so that council members 
are made aware of your concerns.  
 

29



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Oakwood Road being too close to 
Hiltingbury Road so that traffic 
coming into Oakwood Road find a 
traffic log-jam. As well as being very 
inconvenient at times it can be 
dangerous due to traffic being 
impeded in Hiltingbury Road. One 
must not overlook the effect of this 
on heavy trucks especially 
emergency vehicles. 

I believe that this would alleviated 
by the banning the parking of cars 
from the end of Oakwood Road 
through the painting of double 
yellow lines for at least three car 
lengths. 
 

 

Financial Implications 

6.  The costs of the TRO and associated road markings are funded from the core 
TRO Programme budget as part of the “Various roads” allocations, at a cost 
of approximately £4000.   

Risk Assessment 

7.  If the proposals are not implemented, it is likely that the issues with 
obstructive parking will continue which has reputational and financial 
implications for the council. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

 
8.  The Equality Act is relevant to the decision and an Equality Impact 

Assessment (EqIA) has been carried out and attached as an appendix to the 
report.  In summary the EqIA shows that: 
 
(a) There is a positive impact to disabled road users by preventing parking 

across pedestrian dropped crossing points. 

(b) There is a positive impact for Road users requiring extra care Highway 
code regulations (204 to 225) 

 

Climate Change and Environmental Implications 

9.  The proposals should not increase Greenhouse Gas/CO2, or damage ecology 
or the environment.   

 Encouraging residents and businesses to change behaviours 

30



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 

Conclusion 

10.  The proposals have due regard to the requirement of S122 of the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act, by securing the expeditious, convenient and safe movement 
of vehicular and other traffic (including pedestrians) and the provision of 
suitable and adequate parking facilities on the highway.  The proposed 
waiting restrictions attracted objections, comments and an expression of 
support.  This report takes into consideration all the representations received 
and recommends that the committee approves the introduction of the 
restrictions as detailed in this report. 

 DAVID PICKETT 
SENIOR ENGINEERING SPECIALIST 

 
Date: 07 April 2022 
Contact Officer: David Pickett  
Tel No: 02380688230 
e-mail: david.pickett@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 
Appendices Attached:  
1) Location plans 
2) Equality Assessment  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

31



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Appendix 1 
 
Ashdown Close 
 

 
 
Kings Road 
 

 

32



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Meadbrook Gardens 
 

 
 
Oakwood Road 
 

 

33



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Hut Farm Place 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

34



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Appendix 2 

Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA)  

 

Title of EqIA: 

The Borough of Eastleigh (Chandlers Ford and Hiltingbury) 
(Amendment No 9) Order 2022 

Brief description of  
the Proposal: 

The effect of the proposal is to introduce waiting restrictions 
to facilitate access to residential premises. 

Assessment: The measures help to ensure pedestrian crossing places are unobstructed 
both physically and for intervisibility between pedestrians and drivers. 

For all of categories below please consider: 

1. Does this proposal eliminate unlawful discrimination? 
2. Does this proposal advance equality of opportunity between people who share a 

protected characteristic and those who do not share it?  
3. Does this proposal foster good relations between people who share a protected 

characteristic and those who do not share it? 
  

 
 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

* List Background Papers or state None. 
 

35



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	6 Report of the Local Area Manager
	Good news CFH June 2022

	7 Appointments to Outside Bodies, Regulatory Panels and Other Groups
	Appendix - Appointment to Outside Bodies 2223

	8 TRO, Various Roads Chandler's Ford and Hiltingbury

